
PENSION COMMITTEE
10.00 am

FRIDAY 10 NOVEMBER 2017

Meeting Room 1&2 - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester

MEETING PAPERS





Published 2 November 2017

PENSION COMMITTEE
TIME: 10.00 am
DATE: Friday 10 November 2017
VENUE: Meeting Room 1&2 - Shire Hall, Gloucester

A G E N D A

ITEM TOPIC CONTACT

1.  Apologies Andrea Griffiths

2.  Declarations of Interest - Andrea Griffiths
Members of the Committee are invited to declare any financial or 
pecuniary interest related to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

3.  Minutes - (Pages 1 - 12) Andrea Griffiths

To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 1st 
September 2017.  

4.  Public Questions - Andrea Griffiths

To answer any written questions about matters that are within the 
powers and duties of the Committee. The closing date/time for the 
receipt of questions is 10.00am on 3rd November 2017.

To answer any oral question(s) put by members of the public.

Depending on the nature of the oral questions asked it may not be 
possible to provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in which 
case a written answer will be supplied as soon as reasonably possible 
after the meeting.

5.  Members' Questions - Andrea Griffiths

To answer any written members’ questions. The closing date/time for 
the receipt of questions is 10.00am on 3rd November 2017.

6.  Market Valuations and Quarterly Performance Review of the 
Pension Fund: Quarter 3 2017 (Pages 13 - 22)

Mark Spilsbury

7.  Pension Fund Risk Register (Pages 23 - 34) Mark Spilsbury



Published 2 November 2017

8.  Pension Board Minutes (Pages 35 - 40) Cllr Nigel Moor 
The Committee is asked to note the public minutes.

9.  Annual Pensioners Newsletter (Pages 41 - 46) Mark Spilsbury

10.  Training Update 
To receive a verbal update. Mark Spilsbury

11.  Exclusion of the press and public 
Resolved

 That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from the 
meeting for the following agenda items, because it is likely 
that if members of the public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the 
public interest in withholding the information outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information to the public.

Cllr Ray Theodoulou

12.  Exempt Minutes (Pages 47 - 56) Andrea Griffiths

To approve as a correct record the exempt minutes of the 
meetings held on the 1st September 2017.

13.  Pension Board Exempt Minutes (Pages 57 - 64)
The Committee is asked to note the exempt minutes. Cllr Nigel Moor 

14.  Pension Administration Performance (Pages 65 - 66) Mark Spilsbury

15.  Investment Update 
To receive a verbal update. Steve Tyson

16.  Meeting with Fund Manager (Pages 67 - 74) Mark Spilsbury

17.  Brunel Pension Partnership 
To receive a verbal update Mark Spilsbury

18.  Investment Presentation 
To receive a Blackrock presentation. Mark Spilsbury

NOTES

(a) MEMBERSHIP – Councillors Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Shaun Parsons, 
Cllr Lynden Stowe, Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cllr David Brown and 



Published 2 November 2017

Cllr Brian Oosthuysen

COOPTEES -   Cllr Nigel Cooper and Peter Clark

(b) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Jane Burns 01452 3284721 /fax: 42425149/e-mail: 
jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

(1) Will Members please sign the attendance list.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

PENSION COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Pension Committee held on Friday 1 September 
2017 commencing at 10.00 am.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Colin Hay
Cllr Nigel Cooper
Cllr Shaun Parsons
Cllr Lynden Stowe

Cllr Ray Theodoulou
Cllr David Brown
Cllr Brian Oosthuysen
Peter Clark

Apologies: Sharon Crane

In Attendance: Jo Walker, Mark Spilsbury, Steve Tyson (Independent Advisor) and 
Andrea Griffiths.

43. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - 

Councillors Theodoulou, Parsons and Stowe all declared they were members of 
Cotswold District Council.  Councillor Hay also declared he was a member of 
Cheltenham Borough Council.  

44. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - 

No public questions were received.  

45. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS - 

No Members’ questions were received.  

46. MINUTES - 

The public summary minutes were approved as a correct record and signed by the 
Chairman.  

The following actions were noted, in relation to: 
- Minute 27, The Chairman added that any member, who had a proposal in 

relation to the Vice-Chairman, should submit it to Democratic Services prior to 
the next meeting.  Action – Members 

- Minute 34, Members had previously requested the budgeted Brunel costs for 
2017/18.  The Head of the Pension Fund informed the Committee that costs for 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

2017/18 were £260K and the fund cost for 2018/19 would be £520K.   The 
Chairman added that the Brunel Pension Partnership had a long term payback 
period.  It was noted that the alleviation of costs was discussed with Ministers.  
However, the Treasury’s view was that the Fund would be making substantial 
savings, and should not be averse to making a substantial investment.  

In response to a question, the Head of the Pension Fund explained when the 
new managers were appointed to Brunel, it would then be possible to provide 
details of the transition costs.  

- Minutes 35, The Committee previously requested that the risks associated with 
Cyber Security be investigated in more depth.  The Strategic Director of 
Finance explained that two system audits on SAP & Cyber Security were being 
undertaken and the outcome would be disseminated via the risk register.  In 
response to a question, it was noted that the Audits terms of reference would 
include obtaining assurance from Fund Managers.  

47. MARKET VALUATIONS & QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF FUND 
Q2 

Head of Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury, presented an overview of market valuations 
and an update on the performance of the Gloucestershire Local Government 
Pension Scheme, (LGPS), as at 30 June 2017. It was reported that this was the first 
report which used the new strategic asset allocation as agreed by Committee in 
March 2017, for implementation from 1 April 2017.  The short term (pre-Brunel) 
strategic asset allocation was shown within the report.   

The report was sub-divided into four areas, detailing information on i) Manager 
Performance; ii) Asset Allocation; iii) Market Values, and iv) Cash Position. The 
Committee discussed the report in detail.  

The Head of Pension Fund informed members that performance was slightly above 
the benchmark targets for Quarter 2,  It was reported that the performance return 
was positive during the past 12 months and overall, the outlook looked positive.  

Resolved 

That the performance report was noted.  

48. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MARKETS IN FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
DIRECTIVE 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund presented the report.  He proceeded to 
explain that this was a standard report produced by the Local Government 
Association which all of the Funds within the Brunel Pool were submitting to their 
Pension Committees, as recommended by the LGA, to get approval to opt up to 
professional client status.

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

It was explained that the Gloucestershire LGPS already had this status but under 
the amended MIFID 2 Directive, all LGPS Funds would be down graded to retail 
investor status.

Members appreciated it was a technical report which sets out the implications of 
having retail status in paragraphs 4 to 6, and gave the process for opting up.  In 
practice the clear expectation was that all Pension Funds would be granted 
professional client status.

It was put into context, as the minimum level of Assets under management need to 
be considered for professional status was £10 million.

The Head of the Pension Fund explained that there was really no choice because if 
retail status continued past 3 January 2018 investment costs would rocket and most 
of the financial institutions we dealt with, including the new custodian/administrator 
appointed under the Brunel partnership, may well refuse to deal with us, or at least 
reduce the products available to us.

In response to a question, Members were informed that the level of training 
received was comparable to other Authorities.  It was noted that newly appointed 
members to the Pension Committee were required to attend an LGA Pension 
Committee training course.   The Chairman added if members wanted any further 
training, they should contact the Head of the Pension Fund directly to make the 
necessary arrangements.  Members requested that any training opportunities be 
actively flagged up for their attention.  Action – Mark Spilsbury/Members

The Head of the Pension Fund and the Independent Advisor agreed to discuss 
possible areas for training, which included private debt, responsible investing, 
ethical investments, etc.  The consensus was that more regular training would be 
beneficial to members. It was suggested that perhaps the LGA should host a 
condensed refresher training event, in order to keep members up to date.  The 
Strategic Director of Finance agreed to relay this view to the LGA. Action – Jo 
Walker

It was noted that all LGPS Funds were being expected to go through this process.  
Therefore, the Committee was asked to approve the recommendations set out on 
Page 17 of the report, which basically meant the Fund retains the status quo going 
forward.

Resolved 

That the Pensions Committee approved the report recommendations, which 
were as follows: 

i. The Committee noted the potential impact on investment strategy of 
becoming a retail client with effect from 3rd January 2018

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

ii. The Committee agreed to the immediate commencement of applications 
for elected professional client status with all relevant institutions in order 
to ensure it can continue to implement an effective investment strategy.

iii. In electing for professional client status the committee acknowledges and 
agrees to forgo the protections available to retail clients attached as in 
Appendix 1.

iv. The Committee agreed to approve delegated responsibility to the 
Strategic Finance Director and the Head of Pensions for the purposes of 
completing the applications and determining the basis of the application 
as either a full or single service.

49. PENSION FUND ANNUAL REPORT 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund presented the report.  The draft Pension 
Fund Annual Report for 2016/17, was prepared in accordance with the Local 
Government Pension Scheme Regulations, which set out what should be included 
with Annual Reports.

It was noted that the report largely followed previous year’s reports in terms of 
content and style.  However, because the timetable for the completion of Annual 
Accounts had now been brought forward, the draft Pension Fund Annual Report, 
also included the External Auditors opinion on the Pension Fund Accounts.

Officers were pleased to report that the External Auditors concluded that the 
accounts presented a true and fair view and had been properly prepared in 
accordance with Codes of Practice for Local Authority Accounting.  It was explained 
that no errors were identified in the accounts and the quality of the supporting 
papers were praised by the auditors.

The regulations governing the content of the Annual Report required it to be 
published on or before 1st December following the year end, and subject to any 
changes requested by the Committee, it was intended that the final Annual Report 
would be submitted to full Council at its December meeting.

Members noted that it was a very long report, however there was limited flexibility 
regarding the content.

During the discussion the following amendments were agreed: 
- That any additional information required within the introduction be delegated 

to the Chairman and the Director of Strategic Finance.  
- That the funding level be included within the report, 
- That the Administration’s function and performance be included within the 

report.  
- The report required conformity and alignment throughout.
- Page 49 of the report, a photo for all members of the Committee be included 

(Peter Clark picture missing) 

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

- Page 56 of the report, The Analysis of Pension Overpayments be amended 
to thousands, in order to avoid any confusion. 

- Page 61 of the report, Membership Summary dates needed to be amended 
accordingly.

- Page 89, Councillor Stowe remarked that he had attended two training 
sessions in 2016/17.  

- Page 97 of the report, Principle E14, Peter Clark informed the Committee 
that he had not received or completed a self assessment form.  The Head of 
Pension Fund agreed to check the maintained records.  Action – Mark 
Spilsbury.  

- Page 117, Councillor Parsons had been omitted from the membership list.  

The Head of the Pension Fund explained that the Pensions Team were focused 
on producing and distributing the Annual Statements to over 50,000 LGPS 
members  Members noted that this had a detrimental effect on the Performance 
Indicators, and would need time to recuperate.  It was noted four additional 
members of staff had been recruited to help with the process.   

In response to a question relating to ‘Death Gratuities’, Officers explained that it 
was important to ensure the payment was made promptly to alleviate any further 
stress to the recipient and if necessary, cases of hardship could be processed 
quicker.  In the Annual Report, the term Gratuities will be changed to Grants.  

The Committee questioned the sudden increase in the overpayment figure, as 
detailed on page 56 of the report.  Officers explained that one large 
overpayment had been made, however this had now been recovered.  

It was noted that the Pension Fund Annual Report was available on the GCC 
website and copies were available at the Annual LGPS Meeting. Members were 
informed that a summary was sent to all LGPS pensioners, members requested 
in the future, to view the summary prior to despatch.  Action – Mark Spilsbury   

Members discussed the issue of fraud and if the police were reluctant to 
prosecute, then the Counter Fraud Hub should be delegated with the task of 
investigating any such claims.  The Director of Strategic Finance agreed to 
discuss this further with the Chief Internal Auditor.  

Resolved 

That the report be approved, subject to the following amendments: 
- That any additional information required within the introduction be 

delegated to the Chairman and the Director of Strategic Finance.  
- That the funding level review be included within the report, 
- That the Administration’s function and performance be included within 

the report.  
- The report required conformity and alignment throughout.
- Page 56 of the report, The Analysis of Pension Overpayments be 

amended to thousands, in order to avoid any confusion. 
- Page 61 of the report, Membership Summary dates be amended 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

- Page 49 of the report, a photo for all members of the Committee be 
included (Peter Clark picture missing) 

- Page 89, Councillor Stowe remarked that he had attended two training 
sessions in 2016/17.  

- Page 117, Councillor Parsons had been omitted from the membership 
list.  

- Page 97 of the report, Principle E14, Peter Clark informed the 
Committee that he had not received or completed a self assessment 
form.  

50. PENSION BOARD ANNUAL REPORT 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, presented the report.  

It was noted that the terms of reference for the local Pension Board of the 
Gloucestershire Local Government Pension Fund stated that the Board would 
provide an annual report to the Pension Committee and also to the County Council, 
on 6th December 2017.

The Head of the Pension Fund explained whilst taking account of the relevant 
LGPS regulations and guidance, the Gloucestershire LGPS decided to appoint an 
independent non voting chair of the Pension Board. An independent chair of the 
Pension Board cannot have any involvement (e.g. through membership or employer 
links) with the local pension scheme they would be chairing, but having good 
experience, knowledge of the LGPS would be advantageous and would assist the 
other Board members in their role. To comply with these requirements the 
Gloucestershire LGPS invited the Head of the Pension Fund at the Oxfordshire 
LGPS, Sean Collins, to become chair of the Gloucestershire Pension Board. In 
response to a question, it was noted that the Head of the Pension Fund, Mark 
Spilsbury in return chaired Oxfordshire’s Pension Board and these arrangements 
appeared to work well.   The Committee was informed that the Pension Board had 
no decision making powers, their role was purely on a governance basis which 
added value.    

Members wished to know what were the costs involved in the Pension Board, the 
Committee were informed that the only costs involved were minimal and were for 
mileage expenses and officer time.  It was suggested that the minimal costs 
involved should be noted within the report.  

In response to a question, it was noted that members of the board were appointed 
for a period of four years.  During the discussion, it was remarked that Unison felt 
there was potential for a conflict of interests with the positions only being filled by 
Directors.  The Director of Strategic Finance explained that all organisations were 
asked for nominations and there was nothing preventing people from attending the 
meetings if they so wished.  

Resolved 
That the report be noted

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

51. THE ACTUARY'S REPORT ON THE FUND AT 30TH JUNE 2017. 

Mark Spilsbury, The Head of the Pension Fund presented the Actuary’s Report in 
detail.  The Funding Update Report represents a ‘point in time’ measurement of the 
funding position, including making comparisons and assumptions between funding 
levels and financial market data reported by Hymans Robertson, (as Fund Actuary), 
at 31st March 2016 and 30th June 2017.

Members were informed that the funding level at the 30th June 2017 valuation had 
been 83.4%. The funding level at 31st March 2016 formal valuation was 79.6%. This 
represented a deficit of £435m at 31st March 2016 decreasing to a deficit of £417m 
at 30th June 2017.   The estimated change in the deficit as at 30 June 2017 was 
largely due to asset outperformance since March 2016.

During the discussion it was noted that different actuaries had different views.  The 
Director of Strategic Finance explained that on occasion people needed to access 
their LGPS earlier than anticipated due to terminal illnesses, etc.  The Pensions 
team dealt with any issues that arose in order to assist LGPS members.   

Resolved 

That the Funding Update Report was noted. 

52. PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER 

As the Administrative Authority, Gloucestershire County Council was required to 
maintain, and keep under review, a Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) for the 
Gloucestershire Pension Fund. The Council was also required to identify any risks 
associated with the Pension Fund and the measures or controls taken to counter 
such risks. The Risk Register was last reviewed by the Pension Committee in 
March 2017. 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, informed members that since the Risk 
Register was reviewed in August 2017, a number of changes had been made to the 
following risks F2, F4, F9 and F/D2 as a result new period comments had been 
inserted. 

In addition, it was noted that the direction of travel arrow relating to F2 needed to be 
amended.  Action – Mark Spilsbury 

During the discussion, members requested to know what proportion of staff were 
members of the LGPS.  The Head of the Pension Fund agreed to circulate this 
information in due course.  Action – Mark Spilsbury 

The committee noted and agreed the amendments to the Risk Register, as 
highlighted by the published report. 

Resolved 

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

 
That the Committee reviewed and agreed the attached Risk Register, which 
included the amendments included within the Risk Register.

53. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

It was resolved 

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following agenda items, 
because it is likely that if members of the public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 & 5 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the 
public.

54. EXEMPT MINUTES 

Resolved 

That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on 2nd June 2017 were agreed as 
a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

55. PIRC ANNUAL FUND REVIEW 

Karen Trumble, PIRC gave a detailed presentation relating to the Annual Fund 
Review.  

Resolved

That the report be noted.    

56. INVESTMENT UPDATE 

Steve Tyson, Independent Pension Advisor, presented information on investment 
issues and the position of the financial markets. 

Resolved 

The update was noted.  

57. REPORT BACK FROM JUNE 2017 MANGERS MEETINGS 

Steve Tyson, Independent Pension Advisor, gave a detailed update on the Fund 
Managers meeting which was held in London on the 29th June 2017.

Resolved 

Page 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 9 -

That the report be noted. 

58. INVESTMENT PRESENTATION 

Marian George and Catherine Matthews from the Western Asset Investment 
Company gave a detailed presentation on the Investment Company’s portfolio.

59. NEW INVESTMENT PROPOSALS 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, gave a detailed presentation which 
highlighted the Strategic Asset Allocation for 2017/2020.  

Resolved 

That the Committee accepted the Officer’s recommendation.  

60. ADMISSION BODIES REQUEST 

The committee received a report from the Director of Strategic Finance. 

Resolved 

That the Committee approved the Officer’s recommendation.  

  

CHAIRMAN

Meeting concluded at 2.03 pm

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Pension Committee – 1st September 2017

Topic Action Responsibility Progress
1 MINUTES Any member, who has a proposal in relation to 

the Vice-Chairman, should submit it to 
Democratic Services prior to the next meeting.  

Members

2 IMPLEMENTATION OF 
THE MARKETS IN 
FINANCIAL 
INSTRUMENTS 
DIRECTIVE

Members requested that any training 
opportunities be actively flagged up for their 
attention.  

It was suggested that perhaps the LGA should 
host a condensed refresher training event.    
The Strategic Director of Finance agreed to 
relay this view to the LGA.

Mark Spilsbury/ 
Members

Jo Walker 

Members emailed 5/10/17

Letter sent to LGA on 29/9/17.  
Jeff Houston, Head of Pensions,  
LGA responded: The LGA will be 
taking the opportunity to review 
shape and scope of training we 
provide so the timing of your letter 
is prescient. You can be assured 
that the training of elected and 
pension board members will 
continue to be a key component of 
the service we provide.  

316. PENSION FUND 
ANNUAL REPORT

The Pension Fund Annual Report be approved, 
subject to the following amendments: 

- That any additional information required within 
the introduction be delegated to the Chairman 
and the Director of Strategic Finance.  

- That the funding level be included within the 
report, 

- That the Administration’s function and 
performance be included within the report.  

- The report required conformity and alignment 
throughout.

- Page 49 of the report, a photo for all members 
of the Committee be included (Peter Clark 

Mark Spilsbury 

The introduction was amended with 
the key changes being to provide 
more information on the overall 
funding level of the Gloucestershire 
Fund and to provide a commentary 
on Pensions Administration 
performance.

All other amendments were 
actioned as appropriate

P
age 11



picture missing)

- Page 56 of the report, The Analysis of Pension            
Overpayments be amended to thousands, in 
order to avoid any confusion. 

- Page 61 of the report, Membership Summary 
dates be amended  

- Page 89, Councillor Stowe remarked that he 
had attended two training sessions in 
2016/17.  

- Page 97 of the report, Principle E14, Peter 
Clark informed the Committee that he had not 
received or completed a self assessment 
form.  

- Page 117, Councillor Parsons had been   
omitted from the membership list.  

Members requested in the future, to view the 
summary prior to dispatch to all LGPS 
members.  

Last newsletter to Pensioners is on 
the agenda for the November 
meeting of the Committee.
.

417. PENSION FUND RISK 
REGISTER 

The direction of travel arrow relating to F2 
needed to be amended.  

Members requested to know what proportion of 
staff were members of the LGPS.  The Head of 
the Pension Fund agreed to circulate this 
information in due course.  

Mark Spilsbury 

Mark Spilsbury

Actioned

P
age 12



Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund  

Pension Committee 10th November 2017

3rd Quarter to 30th September 2017

Report of the Strategic Finance Director

This report provides details of the performance of the Gloucestershire LGPS as at 30 September 2017. 

This report which uses the new strategic asset allocation agreed by Committee in March 2017 for 

implementation from 1 April 2017. The short term (pre-Brunel) stategic asset allocation is shown in 

this report. 

The report is sub-divided into four areas as follows:

Page 1 Manager Performance

Market values for each fund manager and their performance to date, measured against agreed benchmarks.  

Page 2 Asset Allocation

Fund market values as a reflection of their current weighting against the Gloucestershire LGPS short term 

(pre Brunel) strategic asset allocation from 1 April 2017. 

Page 3 Market Value of Fund's Managed

Current and previous quarter market values for each fund manager.

Page 4 Cash Position Statement

Fund manager liquidity values and cash items held by the Fund.

Recommendation

That the Committee notes the performance report.

Contact Officers:  Mark Spilsbury - Telephone 01452 328920

Performance figures received from BNY Mellon Asset Servicing on Business Day 15, therefore full verification

has not been made by officers and may be subject to change.

1 of 1

P
age 13

A
genda Item

 6



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund #REF!

Committee Reporting

3rd Quarter to 30th September 2017

Manager Performance (Gross)

BNY Mellon state all performance returns gross of fees in order to maintain a consistent view. Derivatives are valued at notional value.

Bid Market

Valuation

Manager Mandate Performance Target Benchmark Indices 30-Sep-17

Portfolio

%

Benchmark

%

Portfolio

%

Benchmark

%

Portfolio

%

Benchmark 

%

Portfolio

% Benchmark %

£'000

Standard Life # UK Equity +2% net FTSE All Share 403,856 3.5 1.9 13.2 11.7 7.0 8.1 7.3 7.6

Standard Life - GARS Global Absolute Return Strategies FundBenchmark 6 month sterling libor +5% 77,679 0.1 1.3 3.6 5.5 2.2 5.6 4.5 5.6

BlackRock EM Emerging Markets - Passive Benchmark MSCI Emerg Mkts Index 137,213 4.5 4.5 18.8 18.6 12.3 11.7 9.5 8.2

BlackRock Global * Global Equities +1-2% gross MSCI ACWI 587,013 2.7 1.8 19.5 14.9 15.8 14.4 10.7 9.8

BlackRock Aquila Life Global Equities Benchmark MSCI World Index 359,854 2.6 1.5 8.8 6.2

WAMCO Global Fixed Interest +1% net Composite (1) 302,484 0.1 -0.4 -1.9 -3.1 8.2 8.1 6.8 7.0

WAMCO GMS Global Multi Strategy Fixed InterestBenchmark 3 month sterling libor +2% 127,223 1.6 0.6 7.2 2.3 4.9 2.5 4.9 2.6

Hermes  Investment Property +0.5% net IPD UK PPF Balanced PUT 103,640 2.6 2.4 10.9 9.5 11.6 9.4 7.0 4.9

CBREI - GMM Property +0.5% net IPD-ABP Fund Index 45,736 2.4 2.3 n/a 6.7 9.6 8.8 9.6 9.8 8.6

Bluebay Private Debt Benchmark 3 month sterling libor +5% 4,030

Golub Private Debt Benchmark 3 month sterling libor +5% 11,180

Yorkshire Fund Managers Venture Capital n/a n/a 5,517 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Cash at BNY Mellon 134 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

Legacy Fund Manager Assets 2 n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a

BNY MELLON FUND TOTAL 2,165,559 2.4 1.3 12.3 8.8 10.9 11.1 8.3 8.4

8,182 Cash-in-house (Not included in BNYM performance reporting)

2,173,742 TOTAL FUND MV

         £'000

Blackrock Aquila Life Hedged Global Equities Benchmark MSCI World Index 176,288

Blackrock Aquila Life Unhedged Global Equities Benchmark MSCI World Index 183,565

TOTAL 359,854

Performance figures for BlueBay and Golub will be available for the next quarters monitoring report

(1) Wamco Main Fund Composite

34% FTSE A Gilts over 5 years index (Gross) Total Fund - 01.04.05 BlackRock EM - 06.12.11

34% ML Sterling Non Gilts All Stocks Index (Gross) Standard Life - 21.03.05 Standard Life GARS - 15.11.12

32% FTSE A Index Linked Gilts over 5 years (Gross) BlackRock Global Fd - 01.04.05 ** Blackrock Aquila - 10.02.17

WAMCO - 01.04.05 Golub - 04.07.17

Hermes  Investment - 01.04.05 Bluebay - 22.08.17

CBREI GMM - 29.06.11

WAMCO GMS - 06.09.11

Memorandum Information - Assets that were previously part of the original bond portfolio - where the Fund is hoping to achieve better returns than that 

achieved by the bond portfolio

Inception dates:

Total Return Total Return Annualised Return Annualised Return

Current Qtr 12 months to Rolling 3 yrs to Since Inception to

30-Sep-17 30-Sep-17 30-Sep-17 30-Sep-17

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund

Committee Reporting Closing

3rd Qtr to 30th September 2017 *Bid Market Short term (pre Brunel) per S.A.A.

Valuation Qtr End Strategic Asset % Optimum 

Asset Allocation (by mandate & asset class) as at Q3 30.09.17 Actual Allocation from 01.04.17 variance Allocation

£000

UK GILTS 48,773 2.24%

UK BONDS 119,625 5.50%

UK INDEX LINKED 84,047 3.87%

OVERSEAS FIXED INTEREST 32,796 1.51%

OVERSEAS EQUITIES - NORTH AMERICA 15 0.00%

OVERSEAS EQUITIES - EUROPE 0 0.00%

DERIVATIVES - FORWARD FX 553 0.03%

LIQUIDITY 16,676 0.77%

WAMCO 302,484 13.92% 19.50%

WAMCO GMS 127,223 5.85%

WAMCO GMS - LIQUIDITY 0 0.00%

WAMCO GMS 127,223 5.85% 5.00%

FIXED INTEREST 429,707 19.77% 24.50% (4.73%) 532,567

UK EQUITIES 392,557 18.06%

LIQUIDITY 11,299 0.52%

UK EQUITIES STANDARD LIFE 403,856 18.58% 18.50% 0.08% 402,142

EMERGING MARKETS - PASSIVE 137,213 6.31%

EMERGING MARKETS BLACKROCK EM 137,213 6.31% 4.00% 2.31% 86,950

GLOBAL 763,263 35.11%

LIQUIDITY 38 0.00%

GLOBAL EQUITIES BLACKROCK GLOBAL 763,301 35.11% 22.50% 12.61% 489,092

AQUILA LIFE CONSOLIDATION 183,565 8.44%

AQUILA LIFE CONSOLIDATION BLACKROCK AQUILA 183,565 8.44% 15.50% (7.06%) 336,930

0 0.00%

GLOBAL EQUITIES GMO BALANCE TO BE PAID OVER 0 0.00%

EQUITIES 1,487,935 68.45% 60.50%

PROPERTY UNIT TRUST 103,640 4.77%

HERMES 103,640 4.77%

GLOBAL MULTI MGR 44,173 2.03%

GLOBAL MULTI MGR - FORWARD FX -15 0.00%

GLOBAL MULTI MGR - LIQUIDITY 1,578 0.07%

CBRE 45,736 2.10%

PROPERTY 149,376 6.87% 7.50% (0.63%) 163,031

77,679 3.57%

MULTI ASSET STANDARD LIFE GARS 77,679 3.57% 5.00% (1.43%) 108,687

Bluebay 4,030 0.19%

Golub 11,180 0.51%

PRIVATE DEBT 15,210 0.70% 2.50% (1.80%) 54,344

VENTURE CAPITAL 5,517 0.25%

VENTURE CAPITAL YFM 5,517 0.25% 0.00% 0.25% 0

LIQUIDITY at BNY Mellon (Cash £133.62 +Hermes £0.01) 136 0.01%

ACCRUED LIQUIDITY 0 0.00%

IN-HOUSE CASH 8,182 0.38%

CASH 8,318 0.38% 0.00% 0.38% 0

TOTAL ASSET ALLOCATION 2,173,742 100.0% 100.00% 0.00% 2,173,742

*Bid Market Valuation as per SORP

Page 1

P
age 17



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Committee Reporting

3rd Qtr to 30th September 2017

Market Value of Fund's Managed

   Bid Market Value Re-balancing    Bid Market Value

30.06.17 during 30.09.17

Qtr 2 Qtr 3 2017 Qtr 3 Qtr 4 2017

Fund: Mandate: £000 % of Fund £000 £000 % of Fund £000

Standard Life UK Equities 390,393 403,856

Standard Life Multi Asset GARS 77,726 77,679

BlackRock EM Emerging Markets Passive 131,365 137,213

BlackRock Global Global Equities 922,478 946,866

GMO Global Equities 0 0

WAMCO Bonds 302,303 302,484

WAMCO GMS Global Multi Strategy Bonds 125,261 127,223

Hermes Property Unit Trust 101,102 103,640

CBRE Property Global Multi 44,663 45,736

Bluebay Private Debt 0 4,030 5,000

Golub Private Debt 0 12,000 11,180

Yorkshire FM Venture Capital 5,328 5,517

Cash at BNY Mellon Cash 105 136

In-House Cash Cash 15,367 (12,000) 8,182 (5,000)

TOTAL FUND: 2,116,092 0 2,173,742 0

Securities 2,062,679 97.5% 2,135,833 98.3%

Cash Statement Position  (SORP) 53,413 2.5% 37,909 1.7%

2,116,092 100.0% 2,173,742 100.0%

Fund Summary

Value of assets held 2,062,679 97.5% 2,135,833 98.3%

Cash held by Fund Managers (including accrued income) 37,941 1.8% 29,591 1.4%

Cash at Global Custodian (BNY Mellon) 105 0.0% 136 0.0%

In-house Cash 15,367 0.7% 8,182 0.4%

2,116,092 100.0% 2,173,742 100.0%

Allocation of available cash made to facilitate movement to the new strategic asset allocation

In-house cash is held separately to GCC funds and is lent out on short terms deposits by the GCC Treasury Desk.

Re-balancing of 

Cash for 

Page 2

P
age 19



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund

Committee Reporting

3rd Qtr to 30th September 2017

Cash Position Statement

Jun-17 Sep-17 30-Sep-17

Qtr 2 Qtr 3 Qtr 3

Fund Manager's Liquidity: £000 £000 £000 £000

Standard Life UK & GARS 13,578 11,299 10,503

BlackRock EM & Global 38 38 38

GMO 0 0 0

WAMCO 21,907 16,676 14,168

WAMCO GMS 0 0 0

Hermes 0 0 0 **

CBRE 2,419 1,578 1,577

Bluebay 0 0 0

Golub 0 0 0

37,941 29,591 26,286

Cash held: £000

Client a/c (cash accrued with Custodian) 105 136 136 Chandos 152

CBRE 151

In-House Cash 15,367 8,182 8,182 Golub First Payment 0

Less: Cash reserves/commitments (803) 7,379 Daily Working Cashflow 500

15,472 8,318 803

Total Fund Liquidity 53,413 37,909   Cash position 33,801

    *      SORP Market Valuation Cash: Cash instruments, pending purchases and sales, accrued dividends and accrued interest 

           Cash balance used for in-house re-balancing process £7.51m

SORP*  Market Valuation Cash as 

recorded In-House as at: Cash less Accrued Income (SORP Cash):

Cash Reserves/Commitments

Page 3

P
age 21



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Pension Committee
10th November 2017

Review of the
Pension Fund Risk Register 

Report of the Strategic Finance Director

Introduction

The Administering Authority is required by the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) Regulations to maintain a Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) 
and to keep it under review. The FSS is always reviewed as part of the 
Triennial Valuation.

In preparing the FSS, the LGPS Regulations require the Administering 
Authority to have regard to the best practice guidance issued by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). This 
guidance includes the need to identify risks relating to the Pension Fund and 
the measures or controls to be taken to help counter those risks. 

The Risk Register was last reviewed by the Pension Committee in September 
2017 and by the Pension Board in October 2017. 

Following feedback from the Pension Board, the Pension Committee have 
agreed that in future a report on the Risk Register will be considered at each 
of their regular quarterly meetings.

Report

The attached Risk Register reflects the risks relating to the Pension Fund and 
indicates the significance of each risk.

As per previous reports the significance of individual risks is measured by a 
scoring system which multiplies the likelihood of the occurrence with the 
potential impact of such an occurrence. Both “likelihood” and “impact” are 
scored 1 – 5 and after multiplying both numbers together, the higher the 
product, the higher the risk.

The attached Risk Register shows each risk, scored before and after controls 
are in place (i.e. the inherent and residual risks).
The risks are referenced as follows:

Financial Risks (F)
Funding / Demography Risks (F/D)
Administration / Regulatory Risks (A/R)
Governance Risks (G)

When the Risk Register was reviewed by the Pension Board in October 2017, 
the Board requested that a new risk be added as follows:

Loss of experience on the Pension Fund Committee or Pension Board, and/or 
the lack of adequate training, resulting in a negative impact on governance 
arrangements within the Gloucestershire LGPS.

Page 23

Agenda Item 7



If the Committee agree to include this new risk on the risk register going 
forward, it will be added as Governance Risk 8.

If added it is proposed that the inherent and residual risk scores would be as 
follows:

IR 
Likelihood

IR Impact IR Score RR 
Likelihood

RR Impact RR Score

3 4 12 1 4 4
Medium 
Risk

Low Risk

These risks take into account the low level of turnover experienced on both 
the Pension Committee and Pension Board and the training provided to 
members.

Recommendation

The Committee are asked to review and comment on the attached Risk 
Register and consider the request of the Pension Board to include the new 
risk as governance risk 8..

Contact Officer

Mark Spilsbury - Head of Pension Fund (01452 328920)

Page 24



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER UPDATED IN OCTOBER 2017 FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE PENSION COMMITTEE IN NOVEMBER 2017 AND THE PENSION BOARD IN OCTOBER 2017

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

F1 R

Fund assets fail to deliver returns in line with the 

anticipated returns underpinning valuation of 

liabilities over the long-term

The achievement of fully funded 

pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 4 16

Only anticipate long-term return on a 

relatively prudent basis to reduce risk of 

under-performing.

Assets invested on the basis of specialist 

advice, in a suitably diversified manner 

across asset classes, geographies, 

managers, etc.

Analyse progress at three yearly 

valuations for all employers.  

Inter-valuation roll-forward of liabilities 

between valuations at whole Fund level.   

Actuarial Review on a like for like basis 

has confirmed a strong deficit recovery 

plan.

2 4 8 ▲ Financial

Due to increased uncertainty following the 

BREXIT vote and possible negative long 

term implications, this risk will be monitored 

to determine whether the  likelihood of this 

risk materialising needs to be increased. 

Performance over the last 1 year and 3 

year period exceed the anticipated returns 

used as part of the 2016 valuation.

11/08/2017

To monitor the long term movements on 

the fund and the investment returns being 

achieved by each asset class to consider 

whether any changes are required

Head of 

Pension 

Fund

Quarterly 

monitoring

F2 R Inappropriate long-term investment strategy. 
The achievement of fully funded 

pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 4 16

Regular monitoring of Fund's cash flow 

with actuarial estimates of future cash flow 

position.                               Overall 

investment strategy options including 

diversification considered as an integral 

part of the funding strategy.  Use of asset 

liability modelling.   Actuarial Review on a 

like for like basis has confirmed a strong 

deficit recovery plan.

2 4 8 ▲ Financial

Phased movement to new allocation is 

being undertaken in the context of 

reducing exposure to equities whilst 

maintaining adequate returns and 

minimising new transition costs before 

the transition into the Brunel Pension 

Partnership. Phase 1 investment 

proposals that were agreed following 

the June meeting of the Pension 

Committee have now been 

implemented.

11/08/2017

Head of 

Pension 

Fund

Regular monitoring 

of the phased 

introduction of the 

new Strategic 

Asset allocation in 

the context of 

movement into the 

Brunel Pension 

Partnership.  

F3 R
Fall in risk-free returns on Government bonds, 

leading to rise in value placed on liabilities.

The achievement of fully funded 

pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

Stabilisation modelling at whole Fund level 

allows for the probability of this within a 

longer term context.  

Inter-valuation monitoring, as above.

Some investment in bonds helps to 

mitigate this risk.   Actuarial Review on a 

like for like basis has confirmed a strong 

deficit recovery plan.

2 3 6 ► Financial

Return forecasts taken into account as part 

of the 2016 valuation of the fund and the 

formulation of the new investment strategy.

11/08/2017

F4 R Increasing Pension Fund deficit
The achievement of fully funded 

pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

Actuarial review via Triennial Valuation 

and regular update reports.

Regular consideration by Pension 

Committee on manager performance 

relative to funding assumptions, funding 

position and funding strategy.  Actuarial 

Review on a like for like basis has 

confirmed a strong deficit recovery plan.

2 3 6 ► Financial

Funding deficit reduced at 2016 Fund 

Valuation and performance over the last 

1 year and 3 year period exceed the 

anticipated returns used as part of the 

2016 valuation.

11/08/2017

F5 R
Active investment manager under-performance 

relative to benchmark.

Maximising investment returns to help 

the Fund achieve its funding target

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

Quarterly investment monitoring analyses 

market performance and active managers 

relative to their index benchmark.  

Diversification of investments across 

asset classes and across different fund 

managers

3 3 9 ► Financial

Due to increased uncertainty following the 

BREXIT vote and possible negative long 

term implications, this risk will be monitored 

to determine whether the  likelihood of this 

risk materialising needs to be increased. 

Performance over the last 1 year and 3 

year period exceed the anticipated returns 

used as part of the 2016 valuation.

11/08/2017

Transition of one active manager to 

passive management. Strategic Asset 

Allocation Review taking place. Monitoring 

of Fund investment performance

Head of 

Pension 

Fund

Quarterly 

monitoring

F6 R
Pay and price inflation significantly more than 

anticipated.

The achievement of fully funded 

pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 2 8

The focus of the actuarial valuation 

process is on real returns on assets, net 

of price and pay increases. 

Inter-valuation monitoring, as above, gives 

early warning. 

Some investment in index-linked bonds 

also helps to mitigate this risk.  

Employers pay for their own salary awards 

and should be mindful of the geared effect 

on pension liabilities of any bias in 

pensionable pay rises towards longer-

serving employees.  

3 2 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 

or Opportunity

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments - where changed 

since last considered by the Pension 

Committee in June 2017 are shown in 

bold italics.

All risks are 

monitored on an 

on-going basis. 

Date of last 

review. Further actions Owner

Inherent Risk 

or Opportunity

Ref O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
/R

is
k

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 

Consequences  if risk occurs and 

related objectives Owner

1e

P
age 25



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 

or Opportunity

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments - where changed 

since last considered by the Pension 

Committee in June 2017 are shown in 

bold italics.

All risks are 

monitored on an 

on-going basis. 

Date of last 

review. Further actions Owner

Inherent Risk 

or Opportunity

Ref O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
/R

is
k

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 

Consequences  if risk occurs and 

related objectives Owner

F7 R Unexpected increase in employer’s contribution rate 
To stabilise changes in employer 

contribution rates over the long term

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

An explicit stabilisation mechanism has 

been agreed for eligible employers as part 

of the funding strategy.  Other measures 

are also in place to limit sudden increases 

in contributions.

Obtain information on financial strength of 

individual employers. Discuss with 

employers their ability to absorb rises in 

their level of contribution.

Where appropriate mitigate impact 

through deficit spreading and phasing in of 

contribution rises, with appropriate 

security from employers and further 

analysis by the Fund’s actuary.

2 3 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F8 R
Orphaned employers give rise to added costs for 

the Fund

To ensure individual employers in the 

Fund are responsible for their own 

costs 

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

The Fund seeks a cessation debt (or 

security/guarantor) to minimise the risk of 

this happening in the future. At risk 

employers are identified and are engaged 

in discussions over remedial actions in 

advance of retirement of all active 

members. 

If it occurs, the Actuary calculates the 

added cost spread pro-rata among all 

employers 

2 3 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F9 R

The Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) is proposing 

that local authorities will be classified as "retail" 

rather than "per se professional" clients under the 

European Union's Markets in Financial Instruments 

Directive (MiFIDII).

If LGPS Funds are not classified as 

Professional Investors investment 

management costs are likely to 

increase.

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

Representative bodies such as the 

national Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) 

for the LGPS and the PLSA have 

responded to the FCA’s consultation on 

the implementation of MiFIDII, proposing 

that local authorities should be deemed 

professional clients, especially in the 

administration of the LGPS pension fund.

2 3 6 ► Financial

The FCA issued their final policy 

statement regarding MiFID II, PS 17/14, 

in July 2017. his policy statement 

confirmed that Local Authorities would 

be deemed as Retail Clients by default. 

However, local authorities,  in their 

management of LGPS, would be able to 

opt-up to being Professional Clients. PS 

17/14 updated the opt-up criteria from 

Retail to eligible Professional Clients to 

facilitate, where appropriate, large 

LGPS to be able to opt-up to 

professional. As per PS 17/14, LGPS 

need to: 

Satisfy the qualitative test, which now 

allows for the expertise to be collective 

(pensions committee), instead of an 

individual

- Satisfy the quantitative test: 

         - assets higher than £10m.

and one of the following three:

         - undertaking 10 transactions on 

average per quarter;

         - the person authorised to carry 

out transactions employment in the 

financial sector for at least 1 year in a 

professional position; or,

         - (New) The client is subject to the 

LGPS Regulation for their pension 

administration business. 

The Gloucestershire Fund is working 

with other Brunel Funds to make the 

appropriate application to be treated as 

a Professional investor.

11/08/2017

P
age 26



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 

or Opportunity

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments - where changed 

since last considered by the Pension 

Committee in June 2017 are shown in 

bold italics.

All risks are 

monitored on an 

on-going basis. 

Date of last 

review. Further actions Owner

Inherent Risk 

or Opportunity

Ref O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
/R

is
k

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 

Consequences  if risk occurs and 

related objectives Owner

F/D1 R
Pensioners living longer, thus increasing cost to 

Fund.

The achievement of fully funded 

pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 

Fund
5 2 10

Set mortality assumptions with some 

allowance for future increases in life 

expectancy.

The Fund Actuary has direct access to the 

experience of over 50 LGPS funds which 

allows early identification of changes in life 

expectancy that might in turn affect the 

assumptions underpinning the valuation.

The Fund also sets life expectancy 

assumptions using ClubVita, which is a 

specialised longevity company and 

provides life expectancy assumptions 

based on the profile of the Fund’s own 

membership.

Administering Authority encourage any 

employers concerned at costs to promote 

later retirement culture.  Each 1 year rise 

in the average age at retirement would 

save roughly 5% of pension costs.  

3 2 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F/D2 R

Maturing Fund – i.e. proportion of actively 

contributing employees declines relative to retired 

employees leading to the possibility of there not 

being sufficient liquid funds available to pay 

liabilities as they fall due.

Efficient management of the Fund by 

the Administering Authority, ensuring 

it's responsibilities are met, while costs 

are minimised

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

Continue to monitor at each valuation, 

seeking monetary amounts rather than % 

of pay. Between valuations regularly 

monitor level of active members on both a 

total Fund basis and by individual 

employer. Regularly monitor how cash 

flow positive the Fund is. Regularly review 

investment strategy.

2 3 6 ► Financial

The Fund commissioned Hymans 

Robertson to undertake cash flow 

modelling based on the following three 

scenarios:

Scenario 1 – cash flows projections 

based on 2016 valuation membership 

data, Scenario 2 – cash flows 

projections based on 2016 valuation 

membership data, with a 20% reduction 

in actives, Scenario 3  - with a 40% 

reduction in active members. This 

modelling indicated that the fund will 

remain cashflow positive until 2033 

under scenario1, to 2026 under 

scenario 2 and would immediately 

become casflow negative under 

scenario 3. Given that active 

membership in the Gloucestershire 

scheme is still increasing slightly it is 

felt that scenario 1 is the most likely 

outcome for the fund.

11/08/2017

F/D3 R
A company admitted to the Fund as an admission 

body may become financially unviable

Efficient management of the Fund by 

the Administering Authority, ensuring 

it's responsibilities are met, while costs 

are minimised

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

A transferee admission body will always 

have a funding guarantee from the 

transferring scheme employer. A 

community admission body will only be 

admitted to the Fund if they have a 

funding guarantee from a scheme 

employer with tax raising powers. A surety 

bond to cover the cost of paying pensions 

early if the company goes into liquidation 

is also generally required by the scheme 

employer to cover the potential risk of the 

admitted body becoming insolvent and the 

value of this surety or bond is reviewed 

regularly to ensure it provides adequate 

cover for the financial risks involved

3 3 9 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F/D4 R Deteriorating patterns of early retirements

To ensure individual employers in the 

Fund are responsible for their own 

costs 

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

Employers are charged the extra cost of 

non ill-health retirements following each 

individual decision.

Employer ill health retirement experience 

is monitored, and insurance is an option.

2 3 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F/D5 R
Reductions in payroll causing insufficient deficit 

recovery payments

To ensure individual employers in the 

Fund are responsible for their own 

costs 

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

Require employers to pay sums due for 

deficit recovery contributions as a fixed 

monetary amount rather than being 

expressed as a % of pay.

2 3 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F/D6 R
Ill-health retirements significantly more than 

anticipated

To ensure individual employers in the 

Fund are responsible for their own 

costs 

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

Monitoring of each employer’s ill-health 

experience on an ongoing basis. The 

employer may be charged additional 

contributions if this exceeds the ill-health 

assumption built in. Ill health insurance is 

available to be purchased by individual 

employers

2 3 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

P
age 27



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 

or Opportunity

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments - where changed 

since last considered by the Pension 

Committee in June 2017 are shown in 

bold italics.

All risks are 

monitored on an 

on-going basis. 

Date of last 

review. Further actions Owner

Inherent Risk 

or Opportunity

Ref O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
/R

is
k

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 

Consequences  if risk occurs and 

related objectives Owner

F/D7 R

Adverse effect on the Fund’s investment strategy 

and employer contributions if large numbers of 

active members are outsourced on a “closed” (to 

new entrants) basis

The achievement of fully funded 

pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 

Fund
3 3 9

Take advice from the Fund actuary on the 

likely impact this will have on Fund 

investment out performance assumptions 

and employer contributions. Monitor levels 

of outsourcings on a “closed” basis and 

advise employers of implications so these 

are taken into account when they consider 

the business case for an outsourcing. 

Regularly review investment strategy and 

strategic asset allocation.

2 3 6 ► Financial

No significant impact to date, but the risk 

will continue to be monitored on a regular 

basis.

11/08/2017

F/D8 R

Transfers out of the Fund into DC schemes due to 

introduction of "Freedom & Choice" resulting in a 

change in funding level

The achievement of fully funded 

pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 

Fund
3 3 9

Taken advice from the Fund actuary on 

the proportion of the Fund's active and 

deferred members aged 55 or over and 

the maximum exposure of the Fund to 

these transfers, split between active and 

deferred members. Considered impact on 

funding level given different possible 

levels of take up from active and deferred 

members.

2 2 4 ► Financial 11/08/2017

A/R1 R

Significant additional costs resulting from changes 

to national pension requirements and/or HMRC 

rules e.g. changes arising from public sector 

pensions reform, and/or more complex regulations 

requiring increased administration resources.

Efficient management of the Fund by 

the Administering Authority, ensuring 

it's responsibilities are met, while costs 

are minimised

Head of Pension 

Fund
3 3 9

The Administering Authority considers all 

consultation papers issued by the 

Government and comments where 

appropriate. Considered different % take 

up scenarios for active and deferred 

members

The results of the most recent reforms 

have been built into the 2013 valuation.  

Any changes to member contribution rates 

or benefit levels will be carefully 

communicated with members to minimise 

possible opt-outs or adverse actions. 

2 3 6 ► Legislative & Regulatory

As reported to the last meetings of the 

Pension Board and Pension Committee, in 

order to effectively deal with the increased 

workload emanating from the new 2016 

CARE scheme, additional resopurces have 

now been invested in the Pension 

Administration Team.

11/08/2017

A/R2 R
Failure to collect and account for contributions from 

employers and employees on time

Efficient management of the Fund by 

the Administering Authority, ensuring 

it's responsibilities are met, while costs 

are minimised

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

Regular monthly monitoring and 

reconciliation of Fund contributions 

received, including a detailed analysis of 

individual employer contributions and 

employee contributions by pay banding. 

Robust debt management processes are 

in place  to recover any late payments

2 3 6 ► Legislative & Regulatory 11/08/2017

A/R3 R Loss of funds through fraud or misappropriation

Efficient management of the Fund by 

the Administering Authority, ensuring 

it's responsibilities are met, while costs 

are minimised

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

Procedures and processes are in place 

and applied in relation to eg: checking for 

"ghost" scheme members;  multiple levels 

of authorisation for claims and fund 

payments plus secondary checking of 

lump sum payments. Procedures are 

documented and staff are trained and 

managed in carrying these out. The 

Fund's internal auditors carry out regular 

reviews.

2 3 6 ► Fraud

The funds internal auditors regularly review 

the adequacy of controls within the 

Pensions Section. These reviews make 

use of experienced Counter Fraud staff 

who are available to the internal auditors.

11/08/2017

A/R4 R

Does the fund have sufficient resources to provide 

sufficient input to the development of the Brunel 

Pension Partnership in the context of the 

importance of ensuring that the partnership 

operates in an efficient and effective manner.

To ensure the fund is proactive in the 

development of the proposals and the 

robust control environment required for 

the collective management of assets, 

to avoid a detrimental impact on the 

fund. 

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 4 16

Additional staffing resources may be 

required to facilitate dedicated staffing 

resources to take forward the pooling 

proposal. This may require additional 

contributions from participating funds.

2 3 6 ► Legislative & Regulatory

Now that the partnership has developed to 

the establishment of the new company, 

with senior appointments being made, 

limited senior officer resources can now be 

more directed at the important client side 

roles, including looking at the adequacy of 

control systems.

11/08/2017

G1 R

Administering Authority unaware of structural 

changes in an employer’s membership (e.g. large 

fall in employee members, large number of 

retirements) or not advised of an employer closing 

to new entrants

The achievement of fully funded 

pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

The Administering Authority has a close 

relationship with employing bodies and 

communicates required standards e.g. for 

submission of data. 

The Actuary may revise the rates and 

Adjustments certificate to increase an 

employer’s contributions (under 

Regulation 38) between triennial 

valuations

Deficit contributions may be expressed as 

monetary amounts.

2 3 6 ► Governance 11/08/2017

P
age 28



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 

or Opportunity

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments - where changed 

since last considered by the Pension 

Committee in June 2017 are shown in 

bold italics.

All risks are 

monitored on an 

on-going basis. 

Date of last 

review. Further actions Owner

Inherent Risk 

or Opportunity

Ref O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
/R

is
k

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 

Consequences  if risk occurs and 

related objectives Owner

G2 R
Actuarial or investment advice is not sought, or is 

not heeded, or proves to be insufficient in some way

Efficient management of the Fund by 

the Administering Authority, ensuring 

it's responsibilities are met, while costs 

are minimised

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

The Administering Authority maintains 

close contact with its specialist advisers.

Advice is delivered via formal meetings 

involving Elected Members, and recorded 

appropriately.

Actuarial advice is subject to professional 

requirements such as peer review

2 3 6 ► Governance 11/08/2017

G3 R

Administering Authority failing to commission the 

Fund Actuary to carry out a termination valuation for 

a departing Admission Body.

Efficient management of the Fund by 

the Administering Authority, ensuring 

it's responsibilities are met, while costs 

are minimised

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

The Administering Authority requires 

employers with Best Value contractors  ( 

Transferee Admission Bodies) to inform it 

of forthcoming changes. The 

administering authority also monitors 

contract periods of Transferee Admission 

Bodies and regularly monitors levels of 

active employees across all employers but 

particularly for Community Admission 

Bodies. Where their active membership 

materially decreases further steps are 

taken.

2 3 6 ► Governance 11/08/2017

G4 R
An employer ceasing to exist with insufficient 

funding or adequacy of a bond.

Efficient management of the Fund by 

the Administering Authority, ensuring 

it's responsibilities are met, while costs 

are minimised

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

The Administering Authority believes that 

it would normally be too late to address 

the position if it was left to the time of 

departure.

The risk is mitigated by:

Seeking a funding guarantee from another 

scheme employer.

Alerting the prospective employer to its 

obligations and encouraging it to take 

independent actuarial advice. 

Vetting prospective employers before 

admission.

Where permitted under the regulations 

requiring a bond to protect the Fund from 

various risks.

Requiring new Community Admission 

Bodies to have a scheme employer with 

tax raising powers as guarantor.

Reviewing bond or guarantor 

arrangements at regular intervals.

Monitoring funding levels more closely as 

approaching cessation and reviewing 

contributions well ahead of cessation if 

thought appropriate 

3 3 9 ► Governance 11/08/2017

G5 R
Failure to comply with the Myners’ Investment 

Principles

Efficient management of the Fund by 

the Administering Authority, ensuring 

it's responsibilities are met, while costs 

are minimised

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

Compliance as detailed in the Statement 

of Investment Principles is kept under 

regular review. 

2 3 6 ► Governance 11/08/2017

G6 R

Lack of relevant expertise, knowledge,skills and 

resources at officer and member level in relation to 

administering the LGPS

Efficient management of the Fund by 

the Administering Authority, ensuring 

it's responsibilities are met, while costs 

are minimised

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 3 12

Training needs assessments for the 

Administering Authority are carried out 

and an annual training plan produced. The 

Fund subscribes to the CIPFA Knowledge 

and Skills Framework for the LGPS and 

makes this information available to all 

members of the Pension Committee and 

relevant officers. Appropriately qualified 

external advisers and consultants are 

used as appropriate.

3 3 9 ▲ Governance

As reported to the last meetings of the 

Pension Board and Pension Committee, in 

order to effectively deal with the increased 

workload emanating from the new 2016 

CARE scheme, additional resopurces have 

now been invested in the Pension 

Administration Team. However, due to 

training needs of new appointees 

performance against administration targets 

will take time to improve.

11/08/2017

G7 R
Failure to internally hold personal data securely and 

keep pension records up-to-date and accurate

Efficient management of the Fund by 

the Administering Authority, ensuring 

it's responsibilities are met, while costs 

are minimised

Head of Pension 

Fund
4 4 16

Personal data and scanned documents 

relating to scheme members are 

maintained in an online system with 

logical access controls via individual 

password access for those that need to 

maintain and access this information. 

Procedures for maintaining pension 

records are documented and the process 

is monitored and managed within the 

Pensions Administration team. 

Procedures are regularly reviewed by the 

Fund's internal auditors. Physical access 

controls are also in operation within the 

Pension Fund office. 

1 4 4 ► Governance 11/08/2017

P
age 29



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 

or Opportunity

D
ir

e
c
ti

o
n

 o
f 

T
ra

v
e
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments - where changed 

since last considered by the Pension 

Committee in June 2017 are shown in 

bold italics.

All risks are 

monitored on an 

on-going basis. 

Date of last 

review. Further actions Owner

Inherent Risk 

or Opportunity

Ref O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y
/R

is
k

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 

Consequences  if risk occurs and 

related objectives Owner

G8 R

Failure to protect the Pension Fund's key 

information and data as a result of exploited 

technological vulnerabilities facilitated through 

malicious attack, primarily from external sources.

Efficient management of the Fund by 

the Administering Authority, ensuring 

it's responsibilities are met, while costs 

are minimised

Head of Pension 

Fund
5 4 20

Anti-malware and internet security 

software. Patch management policies and 

procedures. Compliance with PSN. 

Internal and External ICT security 

testing.Manging user privileges.

3 3 9 ► Governance 11/08/2017

P
age 30



Service/Project Area X Issue log

Issue

Date 

Identified Description Impact Action Timescale Owner Status

P
age 31



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Risk & Opp Register Guidance 

* Press the ALT + Enter keys to create line breaks

L/V Inherent Likelihood(Risk)/viability(Opportunity) assessment

I/B Inherent Impact(Risk)/Benefit(Opportunity)  assessment

R Risk score is automatically generated from likelihood/viabity * impact/benefit

L/V Residual Likelihood(Risk)/viability(Opportunity) assessment

I/B Residual Impact(Risk)/Benefit(Opportunity) assessment

R Risk score is automatically generated from likelihood/viabity * impact/benefit

L/V Target Likelihood(Risk)/viability(Opportunity) assessment

I/B Target Impact(Risk)/Benefit(Opportunity) assessment

R Risk score is automatically generated from likelihood/viabity * impact/benefit

The date the risk was last updated

Select 'C' for Closed from the drop down to indicate that the risk is no longer, this greys the whole line. Delete contents if risk 

becomes live againAny follow on actions to treat the risk

The person responsible for the further action (may be different to the risk owner)

When the further action is due to be completed

Your appetite for risk in this category A = Averse, O = Open, D = Dynamic

Select from the dropdown list the category of risk/opportunity

Comments as to actions taken must be entered for all red residual risks and where the status of any risk has increased

The amount of risk an owner is 

willing to take according to the 

risk tolerance or appetite.

▲ = Risk has increase from last period, ▼ = risk has decreased compared to last period, ► = No change compared to last 

season, NEW = New risk no comparison

The amount of risk left over 

after inherent risks have been 

reduced by risk controls

The person responsible for the risk and keeping the information on the risk updated

Describe current controls in place to manage the risk, review and update. This should include any other provision of 

assurance, e.g. OfSTED

The assessed level of 

untreated risk

Unique Reference Number

Select Opportunity or Risk from the drop down. 

Give brief description of risk or opportunity

Details of the benefit of taking the opportunity or consequences if the risk occurs and objective the risk or opportunity links to 

(strategically or operationally).

Actions Due

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments

Date Reviewed

Status

Further actions

Owner

Appetite

Ref

Opportunity/Risk

Risk or Opporunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 

Consequences  if risk occurs and 

related objectives

Owner

Inherent Risk or 

Opportunity

Controls

Residual Risk or 

Opportunity

Direction of Travel 

Target Risk or 

Opportunity

Updates header with 
project name and 

Options to add new risk 
lines, easy to use form for 
issues log & sorting risk 
registers. 

P
age 33



Issues Log Guidance 

* Press the ALT + Enter keys to create line breaks

Timescale

Owner

Status

Type of Issue

Date Issue was identified

Detailed description of issue

Impact the issue has on objectives

Actions needed to resolved issue

When the issue needs to be resolved by

Person responsible for treating the issue

Indicator to show if risk is still active or closed.

Issue

Date Identified

Description

Impact

Action

P
age 34



- 1 -

PENSION BOARD
MINUTES of the meeting of the Pension Board meeting held at Shire Hall on Monday 
16 October 2017. 

Present: 
Sean Collins
Cllr Nigel Moor
Owen Shaw

Jon Topping
John Wills

Officers in 
attendance:

Mark Spilbury, Alan Marshall and Jo Moore 

47. APOLOGIES 

There were no apologies at the meeting. 

Chairman of the Board, Sean Collins, welcomed John Wills, (Head of Finance at 
Gloucestershire University), to the meeting. (John had replaced Kate Walton as an 
employee member of the Board). 

John informed the meeting that he would be leaving the University in the next few 
months and proposed Annette Benson take his place as employee member, 
(representing the University of Gloucestershire). He confirmed that Annette had 
been Financial Controller at the University for a number of years.  

The Board noted the change in circumstance and agreed to accept the replacement 
member without having to go through another selection process. 

48. MINUTES 

The non-exempt minutes of the Pension Board meeting held on 24 March 2017 
were confirmed as an accurate record of that meeting.

The information recorded in the non-exempt minutes of the Pension Committee 
meetings held on 29 March 2017, 2 June 2017 and 1 September 2017 were noted. 

Cllr Nigel Moor confirmed he had attended the Pension Committee meetings in 
March and June, where there had been a rigorous assessment of the Pension 
Board minutes. It was noted that the Risk Register would be reviewed every 3 
months, instead of every 6 months. 

In noting the update presented to the Pension Committee in June, detailing 
information on the Gloucestershire Local Government Pension Fund Business Plan 
2017-18, it was agreed that the update was useful and that it would be appropriate 
to consider a further update at the Pension Board meeting in March 2018. 

Action by – Mark Spilsbury

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

It was also suggested the Pension Board consider the Pension Committee Annual 
Report, and this was accepted.  Due to the timings of board meetings, it was 
agreed that the report would be circulated to board members by email on an annual 
basis at the end of each August/beginning of September. Any comments would be 
made to Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund and noted at October board 
meetings. 

Action by – Mark Spilsbury

Cllr Moor also suggested that the Pension Board might benefit from considering the 
investment updates presented to the Pension Committee as exempt information by 
Independent Advisor, Steve Tyson. The suggestion was endorsed by the Pension 
Board, combined with a proposal that Mark Spilsbury, as Head of the Pension 
Fund, provide an overview of the information at each board meeting. 

Action by – Mark Spilsbury
 
It was confirmed that the Pension Committee had made no comments on the 
Pension Board Annual Report.

49. ASSET ALLOCATION AND INVESTMENT PERFORMANCE OF THE FUND 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, informed members that this was the first 
meeting at which the Pension Board had been presented with performance 
information on the Gloucestershire Pension Fund. He explained that the report was 
sub-divided into two areas, detailing; i) manager performance and ii) asset 
allocation. 

Board members noted the information and requested that a similar report be 
presented at each meeting. It was felt the information had been very useful. 

50. RISK REGISTER 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, gave an update on the Pension Fund 
Risk Register. Now reviewed as a standing item by the Pension Committee, the risk 
register had been considered at the March, June and September 2017 meetings. It 
was confirmed that the points raised at each meeting had all been addressed. 

The Pension Board noted the information and agreed that, overall, the new 
approach reflected a positive and encouraging outcome. It was felt that, what had 
previously been a rather “static” document was now a “dynamic” document, under 
permanent review.  

The Pension Board requested that the comments from this meeting be relayed to 
the Pension Committee. 

Action by – Mark Spilsbury

Page 36



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

51. EXTERNAL AUDIT REPORT 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, referred to the audit findings for the 
Gloucestershire Pension Fund, including a summary of the key issues affecting the 
preparation of the fund’s financial statements for the year ending March 2017. It 
was noted that this was the first time of presenting the audit findings to the 
Gloucestershire Pension Board.

The Head of the Pension Fund confirmed no material errors or other areas had 
been identified as requiring amendment in the draft financial statements. He also 
referred to the good relationship that existed between the auditors and the finance 
team at Gloucestershire County Council (GCC) and the excellent commitment from 
GCC staff. 

One minor issue identified by the audit as needing implementation was the need to 
update the council’s SAP system to reflect unrealised gains and losses. It was 
noted that the requirement was a medium priority.

As a means of feeding into the signing off process of the Pension Fund Annual 
Report, it was suggested that the Pension Board consider the Audit Findings Report 
as an annual arrangement. The Head of the Pension Fund accepted this proposal 
and advised members that the reporting timetable for the Annual Report was 
anticipated to be a little tighter next year. In spite of this, he was confident the 
timetable would be met. 

Action by – Mark Spilsbury  

Cllr Nigel Moor enquired if the audit report would be shared with fund members. It 
was confirmed that the findings would be presented at the Annual General Meeting 
in December, and that the members of the Pension Board were welcome to attend 
the meeting. The Head of the Pension Fund to confirm the date of the meeting via 
email. 

Action by – Mark Spilsbury. 

52. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE MARKETS IN FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
DIRECTIVE 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, informed members that a detailed 
report on the implications of the Markets in Financial Instruments Derivative 
(MIFID2) and the process for seeking professional investor status had been 
reported to the Pension Committee meeting held on 1 September 2017.  

At the meeting, the Pension Committee considered the impact of becoming a retail 
client with effect from 3 January 2018, before agreeing to commence the process of 
seeking elected professional client status with immediate effect. In electing to seek 
professional client status, the committee acknowledged and agreed to forgo the 
protections available to retail clients. The committee also agreed to delegate 

Page 37



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

responsibility to the Director: Strategic Finance and the Head of the Pension Fund 
for the purposes of completing and determining the basis of the applications. 

Following the Pension Committee meeting in September, a standard self-
assessment questionnaire formulated by the Scheme Advisory Board and the Local 
Government Association has been completed and sent to all fund managers 
engaged by the fund. The Head of the Pension Fund advised that it was fully 
expected that all fund managers would agree to opt to the professional investor 
status. To not take this option could incur significant financial costs. 

Noting the action taken by the Gloucestershire Fund, the Pension Board identified a 
need to ensure the Pension Committee was equipped with the necessary skills and 
training to respond to Government/EU regulations. To meet this requirement, it was 
suggested an additional risk be added to the risk register for the fund to consider 
the impact of not providing committee members with the required level of 
professional knowledge and training. The risk to be added to the risk register under 
the heading, ‘Loss of experience on the Pension Fund Committee or Pension 
Board, and/or the lack of adequate training, having a negative impact on overall 
governance arrangements within the Gloucestershire LGPS’.

Action by – Mark Spilsbury

The Head of the Pension Fund confirmed that an additional self assessment 
exercise was about to be undertaken, which would assist in developing a fit for 
purpose training plan for the Pension Committee. 

53. GLOUCESTERSHIRE PENSION FUND FUNDING UPDATE 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, gave an update on the performance of 
the Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund as of 30 June 2017. 

Drawing on comparisons with the funding position as of 31 March 2016, the 
following points were made: - 

a) The funding level at 30 June 2017 had increased from 79.6% to 83.4%; 

b) There was a slight improvement to the fund deficit, decreasing from £435m 
in March 2016 to £417m at the end of June 2017; 

c) Future updates to consider the funding position from an assets versus 
liabilities perspective; 

The Pension Board endorsed the Pension Committee’s request for regular, (at least 
six monthly), performance updates on the Gloucestershire Pension Fund and asked 
that these be also brought back to the Board meeting.  

Action by – Mark Spilsbury

Page 38



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC

In accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, it was 
resolved that the public should be excluded from the meeting for the following 
agenda items because it was likely that if members of the public were present at the 
meeting for these items there would be disclosure to them of exempt information as 
defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and that the public 
interest in withholding the information outweighed the public interest in disclosing 
the information to the public.

54. EXEMPT MINUTES 

a) The exempt minutes of the Pension Board meeting held on 24 March 2017 
were agreed and confirmed as an accurate record of that meeting.  

b) The exempt minutes of the Pension Committee meetings held on the 
following dates were noted. 

i. 29 March 2017

ii. 2 June 2017

iii. 1 September 2017

55. LOCAL AUTHORITY PENSION FUND PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, gave an overview of the performance of 
the Gloucestershire Pension Fund based on comparisons with 60 other local funds, 
as of 1 September 2017. 

The Pension Board commended the clarity of the information that had been 
presented, and welcomed the opportunity to consider the report in the future. It was 
agreed the report would continue to be presented to both the Pension Committee 
and the Pension Board. 

Action by – Mark Spilsbury 
 

56. MOVEMENT TOWARDS THE NEW STRATEGIC INVESTMENT STRATEGY 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, confirmed that the Pension Committee 
had agreed the new strategic asset allocation for the financial period 2017/18 to 
2019/20 in March 2017. The new allocation would adopt a phased approach, the 
details of which were included in the report. The Head of the Pension Fund 
confirmed that the committee, officers and the fund’s Independent Advisor had 
been content with the proposals. The report was noted. 

Page 39



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

57. BRUNEL PENSION PARTNERSHIP - SHORT VERBAL UPDATE 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, gave a verbal update on the Brunel 
Pension Partnership. 

58. PENSION ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, gave an update on the performance of 
the Gloucestershire Pension Fund Administration Team.  

Acknowledging the hard work and efforts of the team, the Board noted the report 
and welcomed the improvement in performance. 

CHAIRPERSON

The meeting concluded at 12.05 pm 

It was suggested the Board continue to meet twice a year, (March and October), with the 
flexibility to arrange an additional meeting if required. 

It was suggested the next meeting be held in early March 2018.

Page 40



Pension Committee
10th November 2017

Review of the
Annual Pensioners Newsletter 

Report of the Strategic Finance Director

Report

At it’s meeting in September 2017 the Pension Committee considered the 
draft Annual Report of the Fund prior to its finalisation and production, and 
requested a number of changes which have now all been actioned.

At this meeting the Committee also requested details of how the content of 
the Annual Report was brought to the attention of Pensioners.

On being informed that an Annual Newsletter is sent to all Pensioners in April 
each year, the Committee requested that, in the future, they are provided with 
a copy of this newsletter, prior to publication, so that the Committee can 
comment, in the same way it comments on the Annual Report of the Fund. 

The newsletter is finalised in March each year, once pension increases are 
finalised, and is then sent out to around 13,000 Pensioners each April. A copy 
of the newsletter sent out in April 2017 is provided, in A4 format, at the 
attachment to this report. 

The newsletter is designed primarily to provide Pensioners with key factual 
information relating to their pensions, i.e.

 Pension increase (decrease) levels for the next financial year.
 An explanation of the Pension Advice slip.
 Notifications required on Change of Circumstances.
 The National Fraud Initiative.
 Key Contact Details.

In addition they are also provided with a summary of:

 The Annual Report of the Fund, including a summary of:
o A review of world markets
o Performance of the Fund
o Triennial Valuations

Recommendation

That the Committee reviews and comments on the 2017 Pensions Newsletter 
and considers whether it wishes to receive the proposed 2018 newsletter at 
its February 2018 meeting.

Contact Officer

Mark Spilsbury - Head of Pension Fund (01452 328920)

Page 41

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 43



Page 44



Page 45



Page 46



Document is Restricted

Page 47

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 57

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 67

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 69

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 71

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes -
	Sept 17

	6 Market Valuations and Quarterly Performance Review of the Pension Fund: Quarter 3 2017
	Copy of Gloucestershire County Council LGPS - Committee Qtrly to 30 September 2017 FINAL pg 2
	Copy of Gloucestershire County Council LGPS - Committee Qtrly to 30 September 2017 FINALpg3
	Copy of Gloucestershire County Council LGPS - Committee Qtrly to 30 September 2017 FINALpg 4
	Copy of Gloucestershire County Council LGPS - Committee Qtrly to 30 September 2017 FINAL pg 5

	7 Pension Fund Risk Register
	Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund RR FINAL for Nov 17 Pension Committee pg 1
	Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund RR FINAL for Nov 17 Pension Committee pg 2
	Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund RR FINAL for Nov 17 Pension Committee pg 3

	8 Pension Board Minutes
	9 Annual Pensioners Newsletter
	pension newsletter 2017 FINAL

	12 Exempt Minutes
	13 Pension Board Exempt Minutes
	14 Pension Administration Performance
	16 Meeting with Fund Manager
	Attachment 1
	Attachment 2


